CABINET

MONDAY, 18 MARCH 2024 - 4.00 PM



PRESENT: Councillor C Boden (Chairman), Councillor Mrs J French (Vice-Chairman), Councillor I Benney, Councillor Miss S Hoy, Councillor A Miscandlon, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor C Seaton, Councillor S Tierney and Councillor S Wallwork

APOLOGIES: Councillor Mrs D Laws

CAB63/23 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held 26 February 2024 were approved and signed.

CAB64/23 PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY - RUGBY UPDATE 2023

Members considered the Updated Rugby Playing Pitch Strategy report presented by Councillor Miscandlon.

Proposed by Councillor Miscandlon, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and AGREED to adopt the recently developed Rugby Playing Pitch Strategy and that this is published alongside the Council's current 2016 Playing Pitch Strategy as a supplemental document.

CAB65/23 DISTRICT-WIDE ARMED FORCES MILITARY COVENANT

Members considered the District-wide Armed Forces Military Covenant report presented by Councillor Wallwork.

Proposed by Councillor Wallwork, seconded by Councillor Miscandlon and AGREED to approve the signing of the Armed Forces Military Covenant.

CAB66/23 WISBECH HIGH STREET UPDATE

Members considered the Wisbech High Street update report presented by Councillor Seaton.

Councillor Seaton advised that in respect of 11-12 High Street, there is a change to the published report in that the architect's design has changed from 12 one-bedroom flats to 16 one-bedroom flats.

Councillor Tierney said that some people may be concerned at the idea of a building with 16 flats over the top in the middle of town. He like to stress the importance of putting a decent management system in place to ensure the area remains a nice place to live and there are no problems once the properties have tenants move in. Councillor Hoy responded that local policies can be put in place to control who moves into the Council's premises. Councillor Seaton confirmed that the Council is in control of who will occupy the flats when completed and good management will be high on its list of priorities.

Proposed by Councillor Seaton, seconded by Councillor Hoy and AGREED to note the current position in relation to the building of 24 High Street, Wisbech and note the actions

regarding the development of a viable option for 11-12 High Street, Wisbech.

CAB67/23 DRAFT 6 MONTH CABINET FORWARD PLAN

The draft 6-month Cabinet Forward Plan was noted.

CAB68/23 TO APPROVE TO PROGRESS FOR A COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER UTILISING THE TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT POWERS FOR A LONG-TERM EMPTY PROPERTY IN MARCH

Members considered the report concerning proposed legal action for a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) utilising the Town and Country Planning Act powers for a long-term empty property, Willow View, The Chase, March, presented by Councillor Hoy.

Councillor Mrs French said she welcomes this action as it is something she has been working on for many years with officers and residents. The property was renovated in 2014/15 but totally vandalised after being left empty and the neighbours have suffered and been badly affected by incidents concerning this property.

Councillor Miscandlon asked about the cost implications for the Council and Councillor Boden replied that the Council is covered as much as it can be under the legislation.

Councillor Boden stated that he is not generally in favour of CPOs for residential properties as it is not for the Council to interfere in private property matters but sometimes it is as a last resort, which it clearly is in this case. The property came to his attention when he became Leader, which shows this is not a route that is taken immediately, but If no action is taken then the problem will continue. Therefore, taking the route of a CPO in this case is entirely appropriate and the Council is exercising its role properly.

Councillor Hoy agreed with Councillor Boden; one of the first visits she made when she took on the housing portfolio over four years ago was to this property and hopefully positive progress can now be made.

Presented by Councillor Hoy, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and AGREED to make, seek confirmation of and implement a compulsory purchase order (CPO) pursuant to s226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (TCPA) and the Acquisition of Land Act 1981 and all other enabling powers in relation to Willow View, The Chase, March, PE15 9RJ ("the Property") which is shown edged red on the plan attached to Appendix A for the purposes of improvement.

And to resolve that the Council seek to acquire the Property whether compulsorily using the statutory powers or by voluntary agreement, and to delegate authority to the Minority Officer and Corporate Director:

- To take all necessary steps to secure the preparation, making, and submission to the Secretary of State for confirmation and implementation of the CPO including (but not limited to), the publication and service of all statutory notices; the investigation of and response to objections (including the negotiation and completion of any necessary agreement and undertaking in order to secure the removal of objections to the CPO); and the presentation of the Council's case at any public enquiry or via written representations and all other associated procedural steps.
- To acquire the Property whether by voluntary agreement or compulsorily using the statutory powers section s226(1)(a) Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Acquisition of Land Act 1981.
- To determine the form and contents of the CPO and the statement of reasons

- accompanying the CPO and to finalise the same.
- Take all appropriate actions for making amendments, modifications and deletions to the CPO and plan including updates and corrections to the draft as necessary to finalise and secure confirmation of the CPO.
- Issue and serve any warrants to obtain possession of the Property once acquired following execution of a General Vesting Declaration or service of a Notice of Entry if it is necessary to obtain vacant possession.
- Suspend or abandon the CPO proceedings or withdraw the CPO in relation to all or part of the Property.
- Take necessary action to deal with all matters relating to the payment of statutory compensation including, where required, instituting, or defending proceedings.
- Take all other necessary action to give effect to these recommendations.

4.20 pm

Chairman